
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 

(MEDC) 
  

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with the order of the 
Office of the Governor issued March 16, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Montgomery 
Economic Development Corporation will conduct its Regular Meeting scheduled for 6:00 p.m. on 
Monday, October 19, 2020, at City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, 
Montgomery, Texas via Zoom Teleconferencing. 

 
This meeting will be closed to in-person attendance by the public.  A temporary suspension of the 
Open Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public meetings has been granted by 
Governor Greg Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by 
avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting and in accordance with Section 418.016 
of the Texas Government Code.  Videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized to allow 
individuals to address the MEDC. Members of the public who wish to submit their written 
comments on a listed agenda item must submit them by Emails to rtramm@ci.montgomery.tx.us 
by 3:00 p.m. on October 19, 2020.  
 
Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via Zoom Teleconferencing.  Citizens 
may join the Zoom Meeting by logging on: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84515791685 and using 
Meeting ID: 845 1579 1685. They may also join by calling (346) 248-7799 and entering the 
Meeting ID: 845 1579 1685. 

The Meeting Agenda Pack will be posted online at www.montgomerytexas.gov.  The meeting will 
be recorded and uploaded to the City’s website the following day. Notice - any person(s) using 
profane, abusive or threatening language may result in them being removed from the 
Teleconference Meeting.  

1. Call to Order 

2. Open Public Comment 

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes for Regular Meeting held on September 21, 2020  

4. Approval of Financial Reports 

5. Receive Recommendation from the SOQ Review Committee for the Downtown Design 
and Streetscape Improvement Project. 
 

6. Discuss and Consider Authorizing MEDC Board President and City Administrator to 
Negotiate a Contract to Provide Services for the Downtown Design and Streetscape 
Improvements Project, Refer the Item to City Council for Approval of the Expense, and 
Execute the Contract. 

7. Discuss and Consider Authorize and allocate funds for the Montgomery Holiday Parade 
Event. 

8. Economic Development Reports: 

a.   City Development Report  

    b.   City Engineer’s Report 

mailto:rtramm@ci.montgomery.tx.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84515791685
http://www.montgomerytexas.gov/




09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page1 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

September 21, 2020 

MONTGOMERY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

President Rebecca Huss called the Zoom Teleconference meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Present: Rebecca Huss - President 

  Dan Walker – Vice-President 

  Julie Hutchinson - Treasurer 

  Amy Brown – Secretary 

 

Absent:  Tom Cronin – Board Member 

Arnette Easley – Board Member 

Bob Kerr – Board Member 

 

Also Present: Richard Tramm – City Administrator 

  Dave McCorquodale – Assistant City Administrator 

   

 

OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT 

No public comment. 

 

Convene into Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

 

Adjourn Public Hearing at 6:02 p.m. 

Mrs. Huss stated the sales tax budget is set at $675,000, which is a 10% drop from the estimated 2019-

2020 budget. 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page2 
 

Mrs. Huss said Category One is roughly similar to last year’s budget.  She said the EDC will be 

reallocating additional funds to the Downtown Development Improvement within this category.  Mrs. 

Huss said the new line item will be called Capital Projects.  She stated previously budgeted amounts 

from Transfer to Debt Services will be moved into this new line item.  She said the dollar value will 

remain the same at $160,000. 

Mrs. Huss said Category Two will increase quite significantly.  She said this large increase affects an 

actual increase in sales tax dollars, most of which has been received to date. 

Mrs. Huss said Category Three largely unchanged. 

Mrs. Huss said Category Four is roughly similar, but the EDC will be placing more of an emphasis on 

website spending. 

Mrs. Huss said Category Five will be slightly lower than the 2019-2020 budget, and more emphasis will 

be placed on outsourcing to achieve results, which are regularly inspected for quality and compliance 

with Board goals.  She said the EDC will be emphasizing reaching visitors through social media rather 

than print media.  

Mrs. Huss asked if any Board members or the public would like to comment or discuss the 2020-2021 

budget. 

Mrs. Hutchinson noted the Board members in attendance are the same Board members who 

participated in the Budget Workshop. 

No comments from the Board or the public relating to the budget. 

Reconvene into Regular Meeting at 6:05 p.m. 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minutes of August 17, 2020 Regular Meeting, and August 7, 2020 Budget Workshop –  

President Huss asked for comments on the minutes as presented.  Mrs. Hutchinson made a 

motion to accept the minutes as presented, seconded by Mrs. Brown.  All in favor.  (4-0) 

 

 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

Report for August, 2020 

Mrs. Hutchinson reviewed the presented financial report. 

Mrs. Hutchinson stated she expects, after the fourth quarter expenses, a year over year increase 

of $562,000 in the checking accounts. 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page3 
 

Mrs. Hutchinson said Mr. Lasky informed her the TexPool rate has slowly been declining, but 

over the last week they have slightly been improving.  She said Mr. Lasky is monitoring the rates 

very closely. 

Mrs. Hutchinson said the August 2020 sales tax revenue is approximately a 6% decrease from 

August 2019 sales tax revenue.  She informed the Board the year over year sales tax revenue 

remains 15-16% above the 2019 figures. 

Mrs. Hutchinson said the numbers for September appear to be very similar to the September 

numbers from 2019. 

Mrs. Hutchinson said she and Mr. Lasky discussed the $7,800 approval by MEDC for the 

Southern Rum Runners festival, and the $8,000 approval by MEDC for the Mudbugs and Music 

Festival.  She said there was a question during the July meeting concerning whether these 

approvals would carry over into the 2020-2021 budget or new grant applications would be 

required.  Mrs. Hutchinson said Mr. Lasky suggested noting in the minutes these items were 

previously voted on and approved by MEDC and will likely take place during the 2020-2021 fiscal 

year.  Mrs. Hutchinson said Mr. Lasky did not see a need to reapprove these two items which 

were delayed due to the pandemic. 

Mrs. Huss said these items are liabilities on the 2020-2021 budget which were previously 

encumbered by the previous year’s decision. 

Mrs. Hutchinson said the items will not be on the books until the event coordinators turn in the 

bills to MEDC. 

Mrs. Huss suggested those amounts should be removed from the Events parent account and 

allocate them to the subaccounts. 

Mrs. Hutchinson said she was fine with the suggestion. 

Mrs. Huss suggested bringing the item up at the next meeting in order to pass the budget 

cleanly and adjust it later. 

Mr. Tramm said moving amounts less than ten thousand dollars within the same category would 

only need approval by the EDC Board, not City Council.  He said the EDC would be operating 

within the parameters of the approved budget. 

Mrs. Hutchinson asked if these liabilities would remain on the books indefinitely if the events 

never came to fruition, or if the EDC could vote to rescind the approval. 

Mr. Tramm said he would discuss that with the attorney. 

Motion by Mrs. Huss, seconded by Mr. Walker to approve the August 2020 Financial Report as 

presented.  All in favor.  (4-0) 

 

 

 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page4 
 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

6. Consideration and possible action to approve the proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-2021. 

Mr. Tramm said the MEDC held a budget workshop on August 7, 2020 during which a draft 

budget was created.  He said the draft budget was reviewed by the MEDC Board of Directors on 

August 17, 2020.  He said the Montgomery City Council reviewed and approved the MEDC draft 

budget on August 25, 2020.  He said the budget public hearing was earlier on this agenda and 

now the draft budget is presented to the MEDC Board of Directors for consideration to approve. 

Mrs. Huss said the members at tonight’s meeting were the members who attended the budget 

workshop.  She said City Council approved the draft budget without any questions or comments.  

She said there were no questions or comments during the public hearing.  She asked if any 

Board members had any questions or comments before the vote.  There were none. 

Motion by Mrs. Brown, seconded by Mrs. Hutchinson to approve the MEDC budget for fiscal 

year 2020-2021 as presented.  All in favor.  (4-0) 

 

7. Consideration and possible action to set a review process for SOQs received on Downtown 

Development Planning RFQ. 

Mr. Tramm said the Requests For Qualifications went out and Statements Of Qualifications have 

been received from seven firms. 

Mr. Tramm said discussions need to be held determining the review process.  He said a lot of the 

work is typically done by staff, but it is staff’s recommendation to include the City Administrator, 

the Assistant City Administrator, Public Works Director as well as including two MEDC members. 

Mr. Tramm said the proposed timeline would include determining a basic review process and 

review committee today, September 21, 2020; present the MEDC Board with a finalist 

recommendation on October 19,2020; negotiate a contract between October and November for 

MEDC approval; and present it to City Council if necessary. 

Mrs. Huss and Mr. Walker volunteered to be on the MEDC representatives on the review 

committee. 

The Board and staff agreed the Mayor should be included on the review committee if she has 

time. 

Mr. Tramm said he was satisfied with the direction from the Board. 

No other action was taken. 

 

 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page5 
 

8. Consideration and possible action to partner with Historic Montgomery Business Association on 

use and visibility of social media icon Goat with businesses in the Downtown Montgomery area. 

Mr. Tramm presented an opportunity for the City and MEDC to partner with HMBA to get 

greater visibility for the goat social media icon.  He said the HMBA approached the MEDC 

President looking for ways to work together using the goat icon. 

Mr. Tramm said staff suggest producing up to twelve additional wooden goat cut-outs which 

would be distributed in plain form to businesses in the downtown Montgomery area. 

 Mr. Tramm said the cut-outs would be produced in groups of three as needed. 

Mr. Tramm said he would develop an application form which would specify the goat’s display 

location, design concept, and an acknowledgement that the goat cut-out remains the property 

of the City, with the City having the final approval for design and use. 

Mr. Tramm said the estimated cost for MEDC is around $1,200, approximately $240 for the 

plywood and $960 for staff labor. 

Mr. Tramm said the businesses receiving the goats would paint and decorate them in unique 

ways to be displayed at their businesses providing increased public visibility for the City’s 

historical ties to the goat story and the goat icon. 

Mr. Tramm said one long-term use for the goats would be to have them at events, photo 

opportunities, and conversation pieces to help increase the visual identity of the goat with the 

City. 

Mrs. Huss said there seems to be a slight discrepancy on who is responsible for distributing the 

cut-outs.  She said she would like it clarified on who would be directing the program.  She said 

she would like the City to be responsible for approving the applications and keeping track of the 

goats. 

Mr. Tramm said he had no problem with that being the case.  He said the HMBA can direct 

businesses to the City to apply for a goat cut-out.  He said it is important the City ensures the 

avoidance of designs which would not be well received in the community. 

Mrs. Huss requested a stipulation that the cut-outs be stored indoors. 

Mrs. Brown suggested an annual or bi-annual accounting of the goats in order to have an 

accounting of where the funds have been spent. 

Mr. Tramm said he wishes to have three goats available for disbursement at all times. 

Mrs. Hutchinson asked if the funds would be taken from the Events category. 

Mr. Tramm said using the Events category would make sense as the goats would be displayed 

during festivals. 

Motion by Mrs. Brown, seconded by Mrs. Hutchinson to approve up to $1,200 in MEDC funds 

utilizing category III – Events from the current fiscal year, for up twelve goat cut-outs with three 

initially created, to be overseen by City staff, produced in groups of three, an application for 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page6 
 

which is produced by City staff including the design concept, acknowledging it is still City 

property and the goats will be accounted for on an annual basis.  All in favor.  (4-0) 

 

9. Consideration and possible action on licensing the Montgomery Goat social media icon image. 

Mr. Tramm said City staff has been continuously asked for goat merchandise.  He asked the 

Board if they would like to get licensing on the Montgomery Goat social media icon image to 

have control over how the image is used on merchandise and possibly increasing revenue for 

the EDC. 

Mrs. Huss said the icon will be used regardless and for the City to maintain control over the 

image, it will need to be licensed. 

Mrs. Hutchinson asked if it was a license for use or a trademark. 

Mrs. Huss said both should be done. 

Mrs. Hutchinson asked the cost of licensing and trademarking the icon. 

Mr. Tramm said it should be around eight hundred to nine hundred dollars. 

Mrs. Huss said pricing is also an issue and suggested a flat fee schedule. 

Mrs. Brown suggested starting the trademark process and working on specifics while that is 

happening. 

Motion by Mrs. Brown, seconded by Mrs. Huss to direct the City Administrator to pursue 

licensing and trademarking the Montgomery Goat social media icon image with an amount up 

to $1,500 to be coded to account 56004.6.  All in favor.  (4-0) 

 

 

Item #10 discussion was postponed until after the Closed Session 

 

 

11. Economic Development Report – Richard Tramm 

a. City Administrator’s Development Report 

Presented 

b. City Engineer’s Report 

Presented 

 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page7 
 

 

12. Adjourn into Closed Session at 7:27 p.m. as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 

551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the following: 

a) Section 551.071 (consultation with attorney); and 

b) Section 551.072 (deliberation regarding real property). 

Reconvene into Open Session at 7:51 p.m. 

 

10. Consideration and possible action on Montgomery Economic Development Corporation 

providing a loan to the City of Montgomery for property acquisition. 

Motion by Mrs. Brown, seconded by Mrs. Hutchinson to continue to move forward providing a 

loan to the City of Montgomery for property acquisitions and direct the Board President to 

execute associated contracts and documents.  All in favor.  (4-0) 

 

 

13. Consideration and possible action(s), if necessary, on matter(s) deliberated in Closed Executive 

Session. 

 

No action taken. 

 

 

 

BOARD INQUIRY 

 No Board inquiry. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



09/21/2020 MEDC Meeting Minutes – Page8 
 

ACTION ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

ACTION ITEM ASSIGNEE DUE DATE 

Home Grant update Tramm  

Discuss rescending event sponsorship 
with lawyer 

Tramm  

Allocating previously approved event 
funds to subaccounts  

Tramm October Agenda 

   

   
 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mr. Walker, seconded by Mrs. Hutchinson to adjourn the meeting at 7:54 p.m.  All in favor. 

(4-0) 

 

 

Submitted by:  _______________________________________ Date Approved:____________________ 

  Amy Brown, MEDC Secretary 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Rebecca Huss, MEDC President 

 





















































 

 
Development Report 

October 2020 
 

Richard Tramm, City Administrator 
Dave McCorquodale, CPM, Assistant City Administrator and  

Director of Planning & Development 

 
 

This month’s report finds the City still navigating the effects of COVID-19 and 

cautiously watching the declining infection rate in the county.  Residential 

homebuilding is steady relative to previous months with two new subdivisions under 

development in the City.  Commercial development continued at a steady pace this 

month.  City staff is closely monitoring the situation to understand the implications 

on economic development within our City. 

 
  



Commercial Development 
 
KENROC Property – This 13-acre development is on the north side of SH 105 and east of 

Lone Star Pkwy.  A 16,000 sqft commercial building is along SH 105, with a future Phase 2 to the 

north.    No activity to report this month. 

 

Kroger Site –Roughly 80% built out; three parcels remaining for development.  An additional 

16-acre site with utilities is available west of Kroger.  No activity to report this month. 

 

Central Business District – No activity to report this month. 

 

Shoppes at Montgomery – 

This 26-acre property is located at 

the southwest corner of SH 105 

and FM 2854.  Starbucks and two 

retail centers are also under 

construction that will include 

Chipotle, Ruthie Grace 

Boutique, and HotWorx fitness 

studio.  More businesses will be 

added to this list as they are 

known. 

 

   

 

 

 

 



Residential Development 
Existing homesite inventory is available, and several new residential subdivisions are under 

development.  While uncertainty exists in the market, low mortgage interest rates coupled with a 

desirable community and relatively low home prices will likely keep demand for new housing 

strong for the immediate future. 

 

• 55 new homes have been completed in 2020 (5.5 homes/month, on par with prior years) 

• 4 completed in September 

• 2 new single-family home permits issued in September 

 

Hills of Town Creek Subdivision – With a 

total of 100 single-family homesites, this subdivision is 

immediately west of Town Creek Apartments along 

Emma’s Way.  62 homes are complete, 20 are under 

construction, and 18 lots are available.  Plans for a new 

30-lot section are under review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Montgomery Townhomes –Plans have been approved for a 48-unit townhome project 

along Plez Morgan Drive and site construction is began in early September. 

 

Terra Vista Subdivision – This is a 61-lot single-family development northeast of 

Waterstone on FM 1097. 39 homes are complete, 6 are under construction, and 16 lots are 

available. 

 



Town Creek Crossing – 

This addition to the Buffalo 

Springs Planned Development 

includes 199 residential 

homesites and eight commercial 

reserves.  Land planning and civil 

engineering work are underway.  

More details on the timeline for 

construction will be provided as 

they become available. 

 

City Development Activities   
Texas Water Development Board Funding - The City is utilizing $2.8 million in 

TWDB funding for water and sewer infrastructure projects that include: 

• Downtown + SH105 Waterline Replacement. (City Council awarded a bid in mid-July; 

construction planned to start in October 2020).   

• Water Plant #3 (pending site equipment inspection review).   

• Lift Station #1 (complete and operational). 

• Lift Station #3 Sanitary Force Main Reroute (design complete; process on hold pending 

award of above projects to determine final funding balances) 

 

General Land Office Severe Flood Mitigation Grant – In 2018, the City was 

awarded $2.2 million from the Texas General Land Office (GLO) for flood-related damages 

associated with 2016-2018 flooding events, which included the Memorial & Tax Day floods and 

Hurricane Harvey.  A study of the Town Creek and Anders Branch watersheds on the north side 

of the City is now complete, and projects identified in the study will be implemented with a portion 

of the grant funds. 

 



HOME Grant --The City Council approved an application to be made for the State of Texas 

HOME project in mid-2018. Applicants must have an income lower than 80% of the average 

income for the area, be the owner of the existing house and have a clear title to the property. Four 

city residents qualified for the program.  Three of the homes are complete and one is nearing 

completion. 

 

Comprehensive Plan – The City held a Virtual Town Hall on July 8th to review the draft of 

the Comprehensive Plan developed by TAMU’s Community Resilience Collaborative and Texas 

SeaGrant.  The City held a series of five community meetings during 2019 to get input from 

residents and businesses. The plan will guide public policy in areas such as transportation, utilities, 

land use, recreation and housing.  City Council will see the draft Comprehensive Plan in October 

for review. 

 

Downtown Improvement Plan  

This MEDC-funded project is to improve the streetscape and pedestrian space in the downtown 

area.  Design concepts developed by TAMU Landscape Architecture students will be used by a 

professional firm in the final design work. The MEDC advertised the project in late August and 

anticipates selecting a design firm in October.  

 



Minimum MUD standards – The City has begun formulating minimum standards for in-

city MUD districts, as well as other Special Purpose Districts in the City limits and ETJ.  MUD’s 

Three questions that will be incumbent on the developer to answer are: 

1. How does the district benefit its residents? (amenities, etc) 

2. How does the district benefit the broader community? (variety of housing options) 

3. How does the district benefit the City? (fiscally responsible plan) 

More details of how these standards develop will be provided as the process evolves. 

 

 

Businesses Opened in 2020 
 
Coldwell Banker; 21105 Eva Street, Suite 110 

Christian Brothers Automotive; 19920 Eva Street 

Chick-fil-A; 20155 Eva Street 

Best Donuts; 20998 Eva Street 

Dr. Kendra Pratt, Orthodontist; 19970 Eva Street, Suite 105 

K Innovations Station (graphic design & print services); 304 John A. Butler Street 

Beauty Babes (professional makeup and hair salon with boutique); 305 Prairie Street 

Top Fuel Nutrition; 20821 Eva Street Ste. L 

 



 
 
 
 
September 17, 2020 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Montgomery 
101 Old Plantersville Road 
Montgomery, Texas 77316 
 
Re:  Engineering Report 

 Council Meeting: September 22, 2020 
  City of Montgomery 
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
The following information summarizes our activities on your behalf since the August 25th Council Meeting: 
 
Status of Previously Authorized Projects: 
 
All projects discussed below are shown on the enclosed maps of active developments and capital projects. 

 
a) Baja Road Water and Drainage Improvements, Phase I & Phase II (CDBG) 

We are working with the Contractor, City, and GrantWorks to ensure all required documentation is 
prepared and submitted as required by the Texas Department of Agriculture to close out the project.  
 

b) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 3 – Downtown and SH-105 Waterline 
Replacement 
As a reminder, the project was awarded to Nerie Construction, LLC in the amount of $913,338.00 at 
your July 14th City Council meeting. We received comments to the contracts from the Texas Water 
Development Board (“TWDB”) and sent the contracts to the City’s Attorney for final review and 
approval prior to City execution. 

 
c) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 9 - Water Plant No. 3 Improvements 

As directed at the August 25th City Council meeting, we are reevaluating the scope of work included in 
the project and plan to re-inspect the ground storage tank in early October, pending the arrival of 
cooler weather. 

 
d) 18” Gravity Sanitary Sewer Extension, Phase 2 

We are coordinating with the developer of the Shoppes Retail Center to raise a manhole that was 
covered during the site construction. After the manhole is raised, we will perform testing of the sanitary 
sewer line. 

 
e) GLO Projects 

There is nothing new to report this month. 
 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 2 

September 17, 2020 

 
Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont.): 

 
f) Anders Branch Drainage Analysis 

We met again with the design team at BGE, Inc. on September 15th to discuss the progress of the 
drainage analysis to date and the preliminary recommendations for improvements. It is our 
understanding BGE, Inc. plans to have the analysis complete by the end of September. 

 
g) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 3b – Lift Station No. 1 Replacement 

We performed startup to the generator on August 31st and completed a final inspection of the lift 
station on September 3rd. The lift station was placed into service during the final inspection and is 
currently operational while the contractor is addressing punch list items identified at the inspection. 
We received and recommended payment of Pay Estimate No. 10 in the amount of $67,212.00 to 
Veritas Management Company LLC DBA Black Castle General Contractor for work completed as of 
August 24, 2020. As of Pay Estimate No. 10, the contract is approximately 194% complete by time and 
97% complete by value. 
 

h) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 10 – Lift Station No. 3 Force Main Re-Route 
As a reminder, this project is included in TWDB CWSRF loan. The design is substantially complete, has 
received TxDOT approval, and is temporarily on hold until the Lift Station No. 1 project is complete.   
 

Existing and Upcoming Developments: 

a) Feasibility Studies – There are no ongoing feasibility studies at this time. 

b) Plan Reviews   

i. THPM Montgomery Townhomes – We received revised plans for the development on August 
28th and provided plan approval on September 4th. 

ii. AutoZone – We received revised plans for the development on September 2nd and provided plan 
approval on the same day. 

iii. Hills of Town Creek, Section 4 – We returned comments to the plans on September 2nd and have 
not received revised plans to date.  

iv. Moon Over Montgomery – We received revised plans for the development on August 31st and 
returned comments to the plans on September 17th. 

c) Plat Reviews – There are no ongoing plat reviews at this time. 

d) Ongoing Construction  

i. Shoppes at Montgomery Public Waterline Extension – We held a final inspection on July 24th. It 
is our understanding the contractor is addressing the items identified at the final inspection. 

 

 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 3 

September 17, 2020 

 
e) One-Year Warranty Inspections 

i. Villas of Mia Lago, Section 2 – It is our understanding the contractor is working to address the 
items identified at the one-year warranty inspection. 

ii. Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 – The one-year warranty inspection was held on January 7, 2020, 
and the contractor is currently addressing the punch list items.  

iii. Emma’s Way – The one-year warranty inspection was held on February 18, 2020 and the 
contractor is currently addressing the punch list items. 

Meetings and Ongoing Activities:  

a) Town Creek Inspection – We coordinated with Public Works to complete an inspection of Town Creek 
from Lift Station No. 8 along Lone Star Parkway to its crossing at FM 149, as shown in the photos below. 
We are coordinating with the property owner to have the channel cleared out to improve drainage 
along Town Creek. 
 

        
 

b) Biweekly Operations Conference Call – We continue hosting a biweekly conference call with 
representatives from Gulf Utility Service, Inc. and City Staff. Items of note discussed during the previous 
month included updates on various warranty inspections, general updates on all active design and 
construction projects, and general operations of the City’s water and sanitary sewer facilities. 
 
 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 4 

September 17, 2020 

 
Meetings and Ongoing Activities (cont.):  

c) FM 1097 & Atkins Creek (TxDOT) – We are coordinating with TxDOT regarding the selected option for 
repairs, which is scheduled to let in January 2021 pending TxDOT’s obtaining of all necessary right-of-
way. We received an exhibit showing the needed easements and right-of-way and are working with 
TxDOT to coordinate obtaining the necessary property. 
 

d) FM 149 & SH-105 Right Turn Lane –TxDOT has advised that the project is scheduled to be let in 2021.   
 

e) Design Manual Update – We are preparing updates to the City’s Design Manual, as authorized by City 
Staff, in response to recent legislation that requires all plan review comments to reference a written 
rule. Updates include the addition and modification of standard details and City preferences for 
construction to be enforced in all proposed City and private developments. 

 
Please contact Katherine Vu or me if you have any questions. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Chris Roznovsky, PE 
Engineer for the City 
 

CVR/kmv 
K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Meeting Files\Status Reports\2020\Engineer's Report 9-22-2020.docx 

Enclosures:  Pay Estimate No. 10 – Lift Station No. 1 Relocation 
Active Capital Projects Map 

   Active Developments Map 
Cc (via email):     The Planning and Zoning Commission – City of Montgomery 

 Mr. Richard Tramm – City of Montgomery, City Administrator 
Ms. Susan Hensley – City of Montgomery, City Secretary 
Mr. Alan Petrov – Johnson Petrov LLP, City Attorney 



 

6330 West Loop South, Suite 150 
Bellaire, Texas 77401 

Tel: 713.777.5337 
Fax: 713.777.5976 

www.jonescarter.com 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100  

 
 
 
September 9, 2020 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Montgomery  
101 Old Plantersville Rd.  
Montgomery, TX 77316 
 
Re: Construction of Stewart Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – Lift Station Relocation  

City of Montgomery  
TIN 74-2063592 

 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
Enclosed is Application and Certificate for Payment No. 10 from Veritas Management Company LLC DBA Black 
Castle General Contractor for the referenced project. This application covers construction activities for the 
referenced project during the period from June 30, 2020 to August 24, 2020. The estimate is in order and we 
recommend payment in the amount of $67,212.00 to Veritas Management Company LLC DBA Black Castle 
General Contractor. 
 
As of August 24, 2020, the contract period of performance is 194% complete by time and 97% by total contract 
value. During this period the contractor completed coatings, installed the pumps and installed the generator 
access platform.   
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Watkins, PE  
 
RLW/tms 
K:\W5841\W5841-0036-00 Lift Station No. 1 Relocation\3 Construction Phase\Progress Payments\10 

Enclosure 
cc: Mr. Christopher Roznovsky, P.E. – Jones|Carter, City Engineer 

Mr. Richard Tramm – City of Montgomery, City Administrator 
Ms. Susan Hensley – City of Montgomery, City Secretary  
Mr. Alan Petrov – Johnson Petrov, LLP, City Attorney  



09/09/2020



Document SUMMARY SHEET, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing APPLICATION NUMBER: 10
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. APPLICATION DATE:
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items apply. PERIOD: 06/30/20 - 08/24/20
 
Contract Lines

A  B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. COST CODE DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

1 B1 - .  Mobilization $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $5,000.00

2 B2-1-1 - .  Excavation (Safety/Labor/Equipment) $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $5,500.00

3 B2-1-2 - .  Starter Ring $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $600.00

4 B2-1-3 - .  Forming $136,000.00 $136,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $136,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $13,600.00

5 B2-1-4 - .  Rebar $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $8,500.00

6 B2-1-5 - .  Pour Wall $144,000.00 $144,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $144,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $14,400.00

7 B2-1-6 - .  Sink Wet Well $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $5,000.00

8 B2-2 - .  Seal Slab $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $300.00

9 B2-3 - .  Pour bottom $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $600.00

10 B2-4 - .  Pour Top $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $700.00

11 B2-5 - .  Backfill $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $300.00

12 B2-6 - .  Install P/V/F $40,000.00 $37,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $4,000.00

13 B2-7 - .  Coat wet well $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $2,000.00

14 B2-8 - .  Install Pumps $70,000.00 $9,000.00 $4,150.00 $53,350.00 $66,500.00 95.00% $3,500.00 $6,650.00

15 B2-9-1 - .  Service Entrance $2,600.00 $2,470.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,470.00 95.00% $130.00 $247.00

16 B2-9-2 - .  Switchgear $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $2,500.00

17 B2-9-3 - .  Instrumentation $3,100.00 $1,550.00 $930.00 $0.00 $2,480.00 80.00% $620.00 $248.00

18 B2-9-4 - .  Controls $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $600.00 $0.00 $1,600.00 80.00% $400.00 $160.00

19 B2-9-5 - .  Motors / Pumps $5,200.00 $0.00 $3,200.00 $0.00 $3,200.00 61.54% $2,000.00 $320.00

20 B2-9-6 - .  Site Lighting $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $300.00

21 B2-9-7 - .  Underground Conduit $66,000.00 $66,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $66,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $6,600.00

22 B2-9-8 - .  Wire in Underground Conduit $42,000.00 $21,000.00 $21,000.00 $0.00 $42,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $4,200.00

23 B2-9-9 - .  In Slab Conduit $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,600.00 100.00% $0.00 $560.00

24 B2-9-10 - .  Exposed Indoor Conduit $5,800.00 $4,350.00 $1,450.00 $0.00 $5,800.00 100.00% $0.00 $580.00

25 B2-9-11 - .  Wire in Indoor Conduit $2,200.00 $0.00 $1,980.00 $0.00 $1,980.00 90.00% $220.00 $198.00

26 B2-9-12 - .  Exposed Outdoor Conduit $25,000.00 $21,375.00 $3,625.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $2,500.00

27 B2-9-13 - .  Wire in Outdoor Conduit $4,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 75.00% $1,000.00 $300.00

28 B2-9-14 - .  Generator Connection $2,100.00 $1,050.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,050.00 50.00% $1,050.00 $105.00

29 B2-9-15 - .  Grounding $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $150.00

30 B2-10 - .  Install Manhole $8,000.00 $7,200.00 $800.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $800.00

31 B2-11 - .  Install Underground Pipe $5,300.00 $3,975.00 $1,325.00 $0.00 $5,300.00 100.00% $0.00 $530.00

32 B2-12 - .  Install Generator $90,600.00 $90,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90,600.00 100.00% $0.00 $9,060.00

33 B2-13 - .  Pour concrete foundations $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,000.00

34 B2-14 - .  Final Grading $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 90.00% $500.00 $450.00

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 2 of 3
 

 

   



A  B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. COST CODE DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

35 B3 - .  Trench Safety System $600.00 $540.00 $60.00 $0.00 $600.00 100.00% $0.00 $60.00

36 B4 - .  SWPPP $1,200.00 $1,080.00 $60.00 $0.00 $1,140.00 95.00% $60.00 $114.00

37 B5 - .  Necessary modifications to complete
work $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $15,000.00 $0.00

38 B6 - .  Construction Staking Allowance $7,000.00 $5,600.00 $1,400.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $700.00

39 B7-1 - .  Install Bypass pumping $27,000.00 $27,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $2,700.00

40 B7-2 - .  Bypass Operation $2,300.00 $1,960.00 $250.00 $0.00 $2,210.00 96.09% $90.00 $221.00

41 B7-3 - .  Demo Bypass System $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,000.00 $0.00

42 B8 - .  Demo offsite lift station. $31,500.00 $31,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $3,150.00

43 B9 - .  Electric Service Allowance $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $10,000.00 $0.00

44 B10 - .  Access platform for generator $9,700.00 $4,850.00 $4,850.00 $0.00 $9,700.00 100.00% $0.00 $970.00

  TOTALS: $1,094,300.00 $930,700.00 $74,680.00 $53,350.00 $1,058,730.00 96.75% $35,570.00 $105,873.00
 
Change Orders

A B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

45 PCCO#001 Texas Water Development Board modifications $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

 TOTALS: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00
 
Grand Totals

A B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

 GRAND TOTALS: $1,094,300.00 $930,700.00 $74,680.00 $53,350.00 $1,058,730.00 96.75% $35,570.00 $105,873.00

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 3 of 3
 

 

   



SH 105

LONE STAR PKWY

FM 2854

W FM
 10

97

SH 105  W

FM
 14

9

LIBERTY ST

CLU
B DR

N LIBERTY ST

CLEPPER

COLLEGE

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

E FM 1097

GRAND PIN E DR

CAROLINE ST

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

KINGS LN

JENNY LN

HUFFMAN ST

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR DR

BOIS D'ARC BEND RD

POND ST

SERENE WATER DR

BERKLEY DR

BUFFALO SPRINGS DR

ARNSWORTH LN

GRAND VIEW DR

MIA
LA

GO DR

PENINSULA POINT DR

GRANDVIEW
PT

COMMUNIT Y CENTER DR

PLEZ MORGAN DR

HARBOR SIDE BLVD

RENAISSANCE DR
N BUFFALO SPRINGS

DR

C
B

ST
EW

AR
T DR

LOUISA ST

FLAGSHIP BLVD

B AJA RD

GRA
ND

VIE
W

BL
VD

ST
EW

ART CREEK RD

SU
MM

IT
PA

RK
DR

HAVENSHIRE DR

WATERSTONE DR

PRAIRIE ST

HA
RLEY DR

LONE STAR BND

MCCOWAN

WO
RS

HA
M 

ST

HO
US

TO
N 

ST

WOMACK CEMETERY RD

W E
ST

WA
Y DR

MAIDEN LN

ANNA SPRINGS LN

THOMAS ST

VINTA GEO AKS DR

PEEL PT

POWELLCIR

BR
OCK'S LN

HAMILTON RD

AB
NE

R LN

W GRAND POND DR

SU
NN

YF
IEL

D 
FA

RM

SIMONTON ST

LAWSON ST

GRA
ND

VIE
W PK

WY HA
RB

OR
 SI

DE
 LN

SH 105  W

FM 149

W FM 1097

GRAND VIEW DR

       LEGEND       
City Limits
City ETJ
MCAD Parcels

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Scr
atc

h_
Wo

rks
pa

ce\
Jak

e\0
_O

LD
_D

RIV
E\H

O-
HH

M7
\Pr

oje
cts

\D
istr

ict
s\C

ity
Of

Mo
ntg

om
ery

\PR
JTS

\20
20

\M
arc

h\A
cti

ve 
Ca

pit
al P

roj
ect

s (1
1x1

7).
mx

d   
     

  Pr
oje

ct 
Nu

mb
er:

 W
58

41
-09

00
-18

     
     

Da
te:

 3/
17

/20
20

     
     

Us
er 

Na
me

: JC
P

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

1 inch equals 1,500 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

ACTIVE CAPITAL
PROJECTS

0 1,500750

Feet

Baja Road/MLK Drive
Improvements - Phase I

[CBDG]
(Warranty Ends 02/21)

MLK Drive
Improvements - Phase II

[CBDG]
(Warranty Ends 02/21)

Water Plant No.
3 Improvements

[TWDB]
(Bidding)

18" Gravity Sanitary
Line Extension

[Developer]
(Construction)

Lift Station No. 1
Replacement

[TWDB]
(Construction)

Lift Station No. 3
Force Main Re-route 

[TWDB]
(On Hold)

Downtown and SH-105
Waterline Replacement

[TWDB]
(Contracts)

ROJECTS
(SEPTEMBER 2020)



SH 105

LONE STAR PKWY

FM 2854

W FM
 10

97

SH 105  W

FM
 14

9

LIBERTY ST

CLU
B DR

N LIBERTY ST

CLEPPER

COLLEGE

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

E FM 1097

GRAND PIN E DR

CAROLINE ST

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

KINGS LN

JENNY LN

HUFFMAN ST

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR DR

BOIS D'ARC BEND RD

POND ST

SERENE WATER DR

BERKLEY DR

BUFFALO SPRINGS DR

ARNSWORTH LN

GRAND VIEW DR

MIA
LA

GO DR

PENINSULA POINT DR

GRANDVIEW
PT

COMMUNIT Y CENTER DR

PLEZ MORGAN DR

HARBOR SIDE BLVD

RENAISSANCE DR
N BUFFALO SPRINGS

DR

C
B

ST
EW

AR
T DR

LOUISA ST

FLAGSHIP BLVD

B AJA RD

GRA
ND

VIE
W

BL
VD

ST
EW

ART CREEK RD

SU
MM

IT
PA

RK
DR

HAVENSHIRE DR

WATERSTONE DR

PRAIRIE ST

HA
RLEY DR

LONE STAR BND

MCCOWAN

WO
RS

HA
M 

ST

HO
US

TO
N 

ST

WOMACK CEMETERY RD

W E
ST

WA
Y DR

MAIDEN LN

ANNA SPRINGS LN

THOMAS ST

VINTA GEO AKS DR

PEEL PT

POWELLCIR

BR
OCK'S LN

HAMILTON RD

AB
NE

R LN

W GRAND POND DR

SU
NN

YF
IEL

D 
FA

RM

SIMONTON ST

LAWSON ST

GRA
ND

VIE
W PK

WY HA
RB

OR
 SI

DE
 LN

SH 105  W

FM 149

W FM 1097

GRAND VIEW DR

       LEGEND       
City Limits
City ETJ
City of Conroe ETJ
MCAD Parcels
Floodway
100-year
500-year

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Scr
atc

h_
Wo

rks
pa

ce\
Jak

e\0
_O

LD
_D

RIV
E\H

O-
HH

M7
\Pr

oje
cts

\D
istr

ict
s\C

ity
Of

Mo
ntg

om
ery

\PR
JTS

\20
20

\M
arc

h\A
cti

ve 
De

vel
op

me
nts

 (1
1x1

7).
mx

d   
     

  Pr
oje

ct 
Nu

mb
er:

 W
58

41
-09

00
-18

     
     

Da
te:

 3/
17

/20
20

     
     

Us
er 

Na
me

: JC
P

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

1 inch equals 1,500 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

ACTIVE
DEVELOPMENTS

0 1,500750

Feet

THPM MONTGOMERY
TOWNHOMES TOWN CREEK CROSSING 

125 ACRES
199 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

4 COMMERCIAL RESERVES

WEST LAKES DEVELOPMENT

HILLS OF TOWN CREEK
SECTION THREE

49 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

EMMA'S WAY EXTENSION

HERITAGE PLACE
PHASE III

MOON OVER
MONTGOMERY

27-ACRE COMMERCIAL
MIXED USE RETAIL

MONTGOMERY SHOPPES
RETAIL PLAZA

STARBUCKS

VILLAS OF MIA LAGO,
SECTION TWO

42 SINGLE FAMILY
LOTS

TROY'S DONUTS

HILLS OF TOWN CREEK
SECTION FOUR

30 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

AUTOZONE

J. ALAN KENT

ELOPMENT
(SEPTEMBER 2020)




	Agenda - MEDC 101920
	ITEM #3 - Approval of Minutes
	ITEM #4 - Finance Report
	ITEM #5 - Downtown Design & Stscape Improv SOQ Comm Recommend
	ITEM #6 - Downtown Design & Stcape Imprv Contract
	ITEM #7 - Allocate funds for Montgomery Holiday Parade
	ITEM #8A - City Development Report
	ITEM #8B - Engineer's Report
	W5841-0036-00 Pay Estimate No. 10
	Active Capital Projects (11x17) 9.2020
	Active Developments (11x17) 9.2020

	ITEM #10 - Discuss Board Appointments for 2021

